
Date Published:24 August 2022     

Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee

Friday 2 September 2022 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies. 

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

2  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 20)

To agree the minutes of the meetings held on 27 May 2022 and 21 June 
2022. 

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive any pecuniary or personal interests from members. 

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

DISCUSSION ITEMS

4  HMICFRS INSPECTION FEEDBACK (Pages 21 - 24)

To consider a report on feedback from the HMICFRS Inspection.

Mark Preece, 
Clive Webber

5  RESILIENCE TO WILDFIRES IN GLOUCESTERSHIRE (Pages 25 - 26)

To receive a report on how prepared GFRS is to deal with the potential 
increase in heatwaves and wildfires in Gloucestershire in the future. 

Mark Preece

INFORMATION ITEMS

6  GFRS PERFORMANCE DATA AND UPDATES (Pages 27 - 34)

To consider the latest GFRS performance data. 

The report is to be taken as read. Members to ask any questions of 

Clive Webber



    

officers. 

WORK PLANNING

7  WORK PLAN 2022/23 (Pages 35 - 36)

To consider the Committee work plan, and to suggest items for 
consideration at future meetings.

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

8  FUTURE MEETINGS 

To note the meeting dates for the remainder of 2022 and for 2023 (all 
meetings to start at 10am:

11 November 2022
13 January 2023
10 March 2023
26 May 2023
14 July 2023
15 September 2023
10 November 2023

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

Membership –  Cllr Bernard Fisher, Cllr Jeremy Hilton (Chair), Cllr Mark Mackenzie-Charrington, 
Cllr Vernon Smith, Cllr Wendy Thomas, Cllr Brian Tipper and Cllr Pam Tracey MBE 

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Director of Policy, 
Performance and Governance, Rob Ayliffe 01452 328198 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: 
rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Laura Powick, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324205/fax: 425850/e-mail: laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk


- 1 -

FIRE AND RESCUE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the meeting of the Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee held on Friday 
27 May 2022 commencing at 10.00 am at the Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT

Cllr Jeremy Hilton (Chair)
Cllr Mark Mackenzie-
Charrington
Cllr Wendy Thomas

Cllr Brian Tipper
Cllr Pam Tracey MBE

Substitutes:

Apologies:

In Attendance: 

Cllr Bernard Fisher and Cllr Vernon  Smith

Mark Preece, Chief Fire Officer (GFRS)
Cllr Dave Norman, Cabinet Member for Fire, Community Safety and 
Libraries (GCC)
James Greirson, Head of Logistics and Resources (GFRS)
Adam Godding, Fleet Operations Manager (GCC)
Mark Hanson, Service Director (Edge Public Solutions)

41. APOLOGIES 

Cllrs Bernie Fisher and Vernon Smith were absent from the meeting. 

42. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 4 March 2022 were agreed as a correct record. 

43. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made at the meeting. 

44. PROPOSALS FOR THE SHARED USE OF NEWENT AND DURSLEY 
COMMUNITY FIRE STATIONS 

Mark Preece, Chief Fire Officer, introduced the report on proposals for the shared 
use of Newent and Dursley community fire stations with Gloucestershire Police, 
highlighting that this was one of their areas of focus for joint collaborative working. 

James Grierson, Head of Logistics and Resources, GFRS, explained that the 
following 6 community fire stations had been considered for use by Gloucestershire 
Police: Dursley, Stroud, Stow, Cirencester, Newent and Winchcombe. 

Members noted that interest had been shown by the police in Dursley, Winchcombe 
and Newent stations. However, having met with the police at Dursley Fire Station 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

for a second time, and looked at costings, it was felt that the station did not provide 
the space needed for the police to operate. 

It was understood that the current preference was to use Newent Fire Station and 
that the next stage would be looking into the details with the police for its shared 
use. 

It was explained that there would be no cost implications for GCC or GFRS for the 
shared use of Newent Fire Station; there would be no change of identity to the fire 
station; and no impact on operations for GFRS from the station. The shared use of 
the premises would also generate an income from the police. 

The Cabinet Member for Fire, Community Safety and Libraries gave his support to 
the shared use of Newent Fire Station. He explained that the station had been 
shared with the ambulance service in the past and therefore with minor works an 
area of the station could be made fit for purpose for use by the constabulary. He 
added that Newent had suffered since the closure of its police station, with the 
police currently based in the library, and therefore it would be appropriate to 
proceed as a good facility for the police and to further fire and police collaboration. 

One member requested that the full assessments for each station be provided. 

Another member asked whether there were any plans to share the use of any more 
stations, and asked what happens with the capital money saved from the closing 
down of local police stations?

In response it was explained that the police contributed full capital investment to 
make an area in a fire station suitable for their use. It was added that discussions 
with police were ongoing on the use of further shared premises however each 
station would need to be explored regarding its suitability for use by the 
constabulary. 

The member continued to ask whether it was important to be proactive, rather than 
reactive, with the development of joint premises?

In response, it was explained that as part of the Fire Cover Review, there would be 
an analysis on fire station locations. Should it be discovered that locations were in 
the wrong places, conversations would be held with partners on the location of 
stations going forward and as to their collaborative use. 

Another member asked for further detail as to why Dursley Fire Station was no 
longer being considered for use by the constabulary? In response it was explained 
that since the report to this Committee was written, the costings and space at the 
station had been assessed, and it was decided that there was not enough space to 
accommodate the police vehicles at the station. The costings and space were now 
being assessed at Newent Fire Station, where the police would be using the area 
previously accommodated by the ambulance service. It was also understood that 
Winchcombe Fire Station was being considered for use as a police point, 
accommodated by one police officer and one vehicle. 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

One member queried what the next stage was for these projects and requested 
confirmation that there would be no need for a secure unit at these fire stations for 
use by the police.

It was explained, in response, that there were no plans for secure units, and that 
the police were keen to progress with Newent Fire Station sooner rather than later. 

It was requested that progress with the shared use of Newent and Winchcombe 
Fire Stations be presented to the Committee in six months’ time. 

One member commented that at Cirencester, the police would be needing a new 
base, and queried whether the fire station on the ring road could become a blue 
light constabulary base?

It was explained, in response, that Cirencester Fire Station had been considered by 
the police for the second time in the last six months, however it was determined that 
it would not accommodate the amount of staff and vehicles required, and would 
require redevelopment. They were therefore considering other options first. 

Another member expressed the view that Newent Fire Station would be an ideal 
place for collaborative use and asked whether it would be a flagship station?

In response it was stated that it would not be. Previously the police had shared the 
use of Lydney Fire Station before finding an alternative premise. 

It was queried whether the police would contribute to the payment of utilities. In 
response it was agreed that they would, just as the ambulance service at Dursley 
Fire Station pay GFRS lease as well. It was added that Audit would expect a clear 
outline of costs to each service using a joint facility. 

One member suggested that it could be useful to organise a visit to the fire stations. 

The report was noted by the Committee.

45. GFRS NET ZERO CARBON REPORT 

Mark Hanson, Service Director, Edge Public Solutions, and Adam Godding, Fleet 
Operations Manager, GCC, introduced the GFRS Net Zero Carbon report, which 
had been written in collaboration with John Townsend, Corporate Fleet Unit 
Manager, GCC.

Mark Hanson explained that as a starting point, an assessment of the current 
GFRS fleet was carried out and a plan was developed which set out at what point a 
vehicle would need replacing, which would enable financial forward planning. 

It was understood that of the GFRS light vehicle fleet, half were Euro 6, which were 
less polluting, and half were older vehicles, which were more polluting. These would 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

be the focus of immediate replacement, ideally with electric vehicles, however this 
would be dependent on charging infrastructure. 

In terms of the heavy vehicle fleet, it was explained that current opportunities to use 
electric vehicles would be extremely expensive, and that battery technology 
improvements over the next five years would provide more of an opportunity for 
these types of vehicles to be considered in the future.

Members’ attention was drawn to table 5.4 in the report which detailed the current 
fleet and proposals for their replacement and how much this would save in CO2 
emissions. 

It was understood that GCC had started to consider the use of greener fuels, such 
as Hydro Treated Vegetable Oil (HVO). Vehicles would need to be Euro 6 in order 
to use this type of fuel. As this type of fuel was not in the mainstream, consideration 
would need to be given as to where it could be stored for use. It was hoped that a 
further update on this project could be provided to the Committee in six months’ 
time. 

Members were also advised of GCC’s plans for offsetting, as well looking into the 
use of hydrogen technology, which could be an option for the heavy vehicles. 
However, it was explained that this would not be available in the short term as the 
infrastructure was not currently available.

GFRS was currently trialling the use of solar supplementary panels fitted to a 
vehicle. The results so far seemed promising in terms of reducing emissions and 
increasing battery life. 

Another option being considered was the location of vehicles, such as by spreading 
pool car use around the County, which would make them more efficient in their use. 

It was requested that the total savings on carbon emissions on all vehicles be 
included in the next progress report. 

One member queried whether the use of HVO would save money? In response it 
was explained that the focus was currently purely on carbon emissions, however at 
this stage the costs appeared broadly similar, with a caveat on storage and 
infrastructure. 

One member commented on the conundrum being faced by the Council in terms of 
reducing carbon emissions whilst also being mindful of money.

Another member suggested that as technology advances, the cost of carbon 
neutral energy production should be cost effective.

A further member stated that a new rolling procurement programme had begun at 
Cotswold District Council on refuge trucks which would ensure they would be able 
to get the latest technology in terms of carbon and operationally. 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

One member sought clarification on one of the statistics in Appendix One of the 
report, relating to the age of vehicles. In response it was understood that 46 percent 
of vehicles were over 10 years old.

The Chief Fire Officer added that whilst additional money had been secured from 
Cabinet to replace fleet vehicles, due to the pandemic and the crisis in Ukraine, 
delivery on new vehicles could take a significant amount of time. 

One member highlighted the importance of ‘yard sticks’ to check progress was 
being made in terms of carbon reduction. 

The Chief Fire Officer explained to the Committee that agreement had been given 
to implement a new fleet management system which would bring GFRS and GCC 
up to date, and would provide correct CO2 measurements.  Additionally, the new 
asset management plan, which was to be agreed by Council, would be key in 
dictating the replacement years for vehicles.

The Lead Cabinet Member added that whilst some of the GFRS vehicles were 
getting on in age, they were incredibly well maintained, noting that the aerial 
platform GFRS donated to the Ukraine was 20 years old but looked brand new. He 
gave credit to the in-house servicing team. 

One member commented that whilst the report had looked at GFRS vehicles, it did 
not consider the carbon emissions of other equipment used by GFRS, such as 
pumps, as well as energy use. It was requested that these be included in the next 
progress report to the Committee.

The Committee noted the report. 
 

46. HMICFRS INSPECTION UPDATE 

Mark Preece delivered a presentation to the Committee, updating members on the 
HMICFRS Inspection. It was understood that a full discussion on the inspection 
results would be held by scrutiny at a later meeting. 

Members were informed that at a hot debrief in December 2021, the Lead Cabinet 
Member and CFO were notified that two causes for concern had been identified. 
This had then triggered a number of actions in response. 

A resourcing plan process was agreed with the Chief Executive and an additional 
resourcing summary produced, which identified 39 new posts to be recruited over 2 
years. It was noted though that recruiting to these roles would take time.

The types of roles which would be recruited to were explained to members. They 
included a dedicated role for dealing with Freedom of Information requests, as well 
as for civic events. 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

One member queried whether there would be a Deputy Chief Fire Officer post, in 
addition to two Assistant Chief Fire Officer posts? It was clarified, in response, that 
the principal officer team would consist of a Chief Fire Officer, a  Deputy Chief Fire 
Officer and one Assistant Chief Fire Officer. 

A further question was asked regarding the ratio between operational and support 
staff. In response it was estimated that just under 500 staff were employed by 
GFRS, 40 of which were support staff, however the numbers recruited to these 
types of post would increase. The majority of staff were operational given the nature 
of the service, with 120 whole-time firefighters. 

Members were advised that more resilience would be provided to the Business 
Planning and Performance Team, with recruitment to Green Book posts to support 
the CRMP and health and safety. There would be an increase to the number of 
trainers within the Organisational Development and Transformation Team to 
increase the delivery of training on national and other guidance. Additional 
community safety advisors would be recruited, as well as a Road Safety 
Coordinator. Four dedicated station managers would be recruited. There would also 
be a role focussed on pensions. 

One member queried the number of officers in post who would have gold 
command. In response it was explained that there were three qualified officers, and 
there would always be a principal officer available. 

The CFO continued on to explain the causes for concern that had been identified. 
The first one outlined that the service had not done enough since the last inspection 
to embed its values and associated behaviours, and promote a positive workplace 
culture. The second determined that the service had not done enough since the last 
inspection to improve understanding of the importance of equality, diversity and 
inclusion (EDI) and remove barriers to establishing EDI in the service. 

In response to these causes for concern, an action plan was produced by GFRS by 
28 February 2022, setting out how the service was going to address the issues 
identified. As part of developing this action plan, the National Fire Chiefs Council 
was engaged with on best practice, and a peer to peer dialogue was established 
with the leadership team at West Sussex Fire Service as to how they had 
addressed issues with culture previously. 

Members were advised that next steps included station visits to all locations and 
departments, briefing the wider service and staff, and setting up an account for staff 
to email anonymously to raise issues.

One member sought clarification as to how emails could be sent anonymously, 
whilst another sought clarification as to the focus of the HMICFRS inspection. 

The Lead Cabinet Member stressed that there was nothing in the debrief or 
previous inspection report which indicted the public would not receive the service it 
expected. However, he acknowledged that the service had suffered over the past 5 

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

or so years to build up that back office support, and this had been identified by the 
inspections. He believed the service was on a significant transformation journey.

One member commented that the service needed to be looked at as a whole.

Another member stated that the Committee’s role was to scrutinise the CFO and 
Lead Cabinet Member to ensure a continued upwards trajectory. 

One member queried the efforts being made to ensure staff were participating with 
the action plan, particularly underrepresented staff. In response, the CFO explained 
that as GFRS had responded to the causes for concern and created the action 
plan, more staff had been engaged with and the plan could be updated as a living 
document. The EDI group and other groups would also be engaged with to ensure 
they had that challenging and constructive feedback. 

He continued to assert that the Council recognised the value of GFRS and would 
help the service get to where it needed to be. It could take 5 years to address the 
finance and culture of the service but he was committed to that challenge. 
 

47. GFRS PERFORMANCE DATA AND UPDATES 

Mark Preece provided the Committee with an update on the latest performance 
data. 

It was noted that the rate of Safe and Well visits remained below target and 
therefore this was an area of focus. However, a high proportion of the visits carried 
out were with the most vulnerable, which was better than target. It was understood 
that the expectation was for whole time stations to carry out 15 visits per watch per 
month, however this was difficult as visits had become complex and longer, often 
resulting in referrals to other partners.

Members were informed that the timeliness of responding to accidental dwelling 
fires had increased, however remained within tolerance of target. It was noted that 
the service always mobilised as soon as possible, however response times 
depended on the location of the fire and traffic. A pre-alert system was being used 
so that as soon as the geographical area of a fire had been identified, firefighters 
could mobilise whilst fire control gathered further information. 

Members noted that the percent of operational incident commanders within 2 yearly 
requalification target remained within tolerance of target, and that 5 members of 
staff whose qualifications were due to expire would be booked on to a course as 
soon as possible.

Attention was drawn to performance relating to strategic risk, which would improve 
in the future.

One member asked a question regarding the benchmarking report, in terms of 
whether retained firefighters were being relied on too heavily, causing stress and 

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

strain? In response it was explained that the fire cover analysis would commence 
this year which would look at the crew and models for optimum ways of working. 
Proposals would be brought back to this Committee.

In response to a further question, it was understood that a balance needed to be 
struck between operational response and prevention. It was also noted that whilst a 
comparison could be made between safe and well visits carried out by different fire 
services, not all safe and well visits were carried out the same by each area. 

One member suggested it would be useful to understand who the comparator 
services were that were used for the benchmarking report.

48. WORK PLAN 2022 

The following items were added to the work plan for future consideration by the 
Committee:

 An update on the shared use of Newent and Winchcombe stations;
 An update on GRFS plans for net zero carbon, to include wider aspects such 

as energy use and equipment; and
 Motion 901 – Road Safety in Gloucestershire. 

49. FUTURE MEETINGS 

The dates of future meetings were noted. 

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 12.20 pm

Page 8



Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee actions – 27 May 2022

Topic Action Responsibility Progress

149. Proposals for the 
shared use of Dursley 
and Newent 
Community Fire 
Stations 

To share the full assessments of the 6 community 
fire stations considered for shared use with 
Committee Members. 

James 
Grierson

Circulated with members by 
email on 11 July 2022. 

263. Proposals for the 
shared use of Dursley 
and Newent 
Community Fire 
Stations

Progress with the shared use of Newent and 
Winchcombe Fire Stations to be presented to the 
Committee in six months’ time.

James 
Grierson

This has been added to the 
work plan for the Committee.

364. GFRS Net Zero Carbon 
Report

To include the total savings on carbon emissions 
on all vehicles in the next progress report. 

John 
Townsend

To be presented to the 
Committee in 6 months’ time 
– this has been included in 
the work plan.

450. GFRS Net Zero Carbon 
Report

To include the carbon emissions of other 
equipment used by GFRS, such as pumps, as 
well as energy use, in the next GFRS net zero 
carbon emissions update report. 

Mark Preece/ 
John 
Townsend

To be presented to the 
Committee in 6 months’ time 
– this has been included in 
the work plan. 

5 GFRS Performance 
Data and Updates 

To provide details on the comparator fire services 
used for the benchmarking report.

Mark Preece Details to be included as part 
of the agenda papers for the 
September meeting. 

P
age 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Action 5 – 27 May 2022 FRSC Meeting 

Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee – Comparator fire service used for 
benchmarking report

Report Author – Luke Hindhaugh

Comparator groups

The comparator group used by Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service (GFRS) is 
based on the DEFRA classification which is used by the Home Office to compare 
data sets, such as, response times. The classification is based on the following 
parameters:

 Predominantly rural: 50% or more of their area is 'rural'
 Significantly rural: less than 74% of their area is 'urban' and 26% or more of 

their area is 'rural'
 Predominantly urban: 74% or more of their area is 'urban'

GFRS is significantly rural fire and rescue service and is compared against the 
services identified below: 

FRS Name Urban/Rural 
category

Met/Non-met 
category

Bedfordshire Significantly Rural Non-metropolitan
Buckinghamshire Significantly Rural Non-metropolitan
Cheshire Significantly Rural Non-metropolitan
Derbyshire Significantly Rural Non-metropolitan
Dorset and Wiltshire Significantly Rural Non-metropolitan
East Sussex Significantly Rural Non-metropolitan
Essex Significantly Rural Non-metropolitan
Gloucestershire Significantly Rural Non-metropolitan
Hampshire and Isle Of 
Wight

Significantly Rural Non-metropolitan

Hereford and Worcester Significantly Rural Non-metropolitan
Humberside Significantly Rural Non-metropolitan
Kent Significantly Rural Non-metropolitan
Leicestershire Significantly Rural Non-metropolitan
Northamptonshire Significantly Rural Non-metropolitan
Staffordshire Significantly Rural Non-metropolitan
Warwickshire Significantly Rural Non-metropolitan
West Sussex Significantly Rural Non-metropolitan

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

FIRE AND RESCUE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the meeting of the Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee held on 
Tuesday 21 June 2022 commencing at 10.00 am at the Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, 
Gloucester.

PRESENT

Cllr Jeremy Hilton (Chair)
Cllr Wendy Thomas

Cllr Brian Tipper

Substitutes:

Apologies:

In Attendance:

Attendance via 
Video 
Conference:

Cllr Bernard Fisher, Cllr Mark Mackenzie-Charrington, Cllr Vernon  
Smith and Cllr Pam Tracey MBE

Cllr Dave Norman, Cabinet Member for Fire, Community Safety and 
Libraries, GCC
Mark Preece, Chief Fire Officer, GFRS
Stephen Bace, Lead Democratic Services Adviser, GCC

Laura Powick, Democratic Services Adviser, GCC

50. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Cllrs Mark Mackenzie-Charrington, Bernie Fisher, 
Vernon Smith and Pam Tracey.

51. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made at the meeting. 

52. FIRE REFORM WHITE PAPER - REFORMING OUR FIRE AND RESCUE 
SERVICE 

Mark Preece, Chief Fire Officer (CFO), delivered a presentation on the ‘Reforming 
our Fire and Rescue Service’ white paper and public consultation. The presentation 
would be circulated to Committee members following the meeting.

It was understood that the white paper reflected the recommendations made by the 
outgoing HMICFRS Chief Inspector in the State of Fire and Rescue annual report, 
as well as those raised by the National Fire Chiefs Council (NFCC) and Local 
Government Association (LGA). The white paper had been commissioned by the 
Home Secretary and published on 18 May 2022. A 10 week public consultation 
period would end late July 2022. 

Page 13



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

Members were advised that the paper addressed three principal areas for reform: 
people, professionalism and governance; and of the 48 proposals, 8 related to 
people, 20 to professionalism and 20 to governance. 

The white paper addressed the role of fire and rescue services (FRS) and 
recognised that during the Covid-19 pandemic, the response of FRS was affected 
by a lack of flexible and modern working practices. The paper also recognised that 
national negotiation processes were a barrier to rapid and flexible responses, and 
that chief fire officers should be empowered to make decisions on the basis of risk 
and resources.

It was noted, following a query, that the paper was proposing an independent 
review of the pay negotiation process, which would include looking at pay review 
bodies for other sectors. 

One member raised a concern about different pay and conditions within the 
devolved nations of the UK. In response, it was understood that all FRS based their 
procedures on national operational guidance, and therefore there was consistency 
with national operations, however the concern raised regarding pay in different 
areas of the UK was acknowledged. 

One member suggested that there should be a national pay rate with regional 
adjustments to address the cost of living. 

Another member raised a concern about the marginalisation of trade unions, and 
welcomed thoughts as to how chief fire officers could have more operational 
independence alongside the role of trade unions. In response, the CFO advised 
that increased decision making powers for chief fire officers would not prevent 
national negotiations on pay.  

One member suggested the paper alluded to increased control by central 
government and overriding local democracy. In answer, it was explained that the 
independent reform of the pay and conditions process was fundamental. 

The member queried whether this review could be implemented without legislation. 
The CFO replied that the white paper drew together a range of issues into one 
report, some of which would require legislation to resolve, whilst others, such as the 
independent pay review, would not. 

The CFO continued to explain the proposals for recruitment, talent management 
and leadership. It was noted that more needed to be done to support future leaders 
and diversity in senior positions, as, for example, there were currently only three 
female chief fire officers across the country. There was a proposal to reintroduce 
consistent entry requirements, and the CFO was supportive of the proposal to 
reintroduce consistently applied development and progression which would develop 
the management and leadership of staff for the future. The white paper also 
proposed high potential leadership schemes. 

Page 14



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

One member was surprised that the white paper did not address the impact of 
pensions on retaining senior leaders within the sector. It was proposed that a 
comment be included in the CFO’s feedback to the consultation on addressing the 
issue. 

Clarification was sought on the impact of the older pension scheme. In response it 
was understood that once the pension reached a certain level, the taxation incurred 
was a significant deterrent for an individual staying in role. It was noted that the 
situation would resolve itself over time as those on the newer pension scheme 
overtook those on the older scheme. 

Mark Preece continued to explain the proposals relating to data and research, 
which included the establishment of a central fire and rescue research capability. 

One member repeated that it did not require legislation to increase data capability 
within the sector. In response, it was explained that the data captured by FRS 
would be driven by the Home Office, would be mandated and would be shared with 
Local Resilience Forums. 

The Committee was informed about the proposals for codes and ethics in the white 
paper, which included potentially introducing a fire and rescue oath. 

One member commented that GFRS endorsed Gloucestershire County Council’s 
(GCC) code of ethics and expressed the view that the introduction of a national 
oath for the sector was an unnecessary control mechanism by central government. 
The CFO replied that the white paper was trying to modernise the sector by having 
the right culture, however that would not mean GFRS would step away from GCC’s 
values.

The CFO explained the white paper’s ambition to create a College of Fire and 
Rescue to provide a permanent independent body of expertise, and to drive forward 
professionalism within the sector. 

The Cabinet Member for Fire, Community Safety and Libraries highlighted the 
importance of creating an independent body at arm’s length from the Government 
to drive forward the professionalism of the sector, to enable FRS to meet the needs 
of communities rather than those of the Government. 

One member countered that the college could in fact be seen as an arm of the 
Government. 

The CFO acknowledged that the College represented both opportunities and 
challenges. For example, he queried where the staff to lead the College would 
come from, particularly as FRS would be reluctant to release their staff as they 
needed to improve their own services before they could help others. 

Mark Preece continued to explain the proposals relating to governance, with the 
Government’s preferred governance model being one that met certain criteria: a 
single, elected individual accountable for the service; clear demarcation between 

Page 15



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

the political and strategic oversight by this individual and the operational 
independent running of the service by the CFO; the individual with oversight had 
control of necessary funding and estates; and decision-making was transparent and 
linked to local public priorities. It was understood that there was an option to retain 
fire services within county councils, under a clear accountable leader, such as a 
designated cabinet member. 

One member commented that the argument for a single individual being 
accountable for a fire service was not convincing, and stated that the Council 
needed to determine that it would continue with its current governance approach in 
its response to the consultation.

There was a discussion around fire budgets and funding. The Cabinet Member 
expressed their concern about proposals for ring-fencing operational fire budgets 
where a FRS remained part of a county council.  

Members were advised that under proposals for governance, each Police and 
Crime Commissioner (PCC) could determine whether they wanted responsibility for 
fire. The Cabinet Member assured members that as far as they were aware, the 
PCC for Gloucestershire had no interest in taking over GFRS, preferring a 
collaborative approach between services. 

The Cabinet Member continued to express the view that, whilst accepting some 
central oversight, the more decisions were determined locally, the better for the 
community.

The CFO continued with his presentation to discuss the white paper proposals for 
operational independence and corporate sole, whereby the Home Office should 
take steps to give chief fire officers operational independence providing clear 
guidance on the demarcation between governance and operational decision 
making. 

The CFO commented on the important relationship between himself and elected 
members.

One member sought clarification on the numbers of fire services under control of 
PCCs, and expressed concern over the mixed models of governance. 

The CFO clarified that the Government was proposing a clearly identified political 
leader which could be held accountable for FRS. He assured the member that this 
Committee’s feedback would be incorporated into his consultation response, which 
would be shared with the lead Cabinet Member and the Leader of the Council 
before submission. 

The member asked the CFO for his view of the current governance arrangements 
and asked whether anything was preventing him operating a good service for the 
public. 

Page 16



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

In response, Mark Preece commented on the effective relationship with the police; 
the benefits of the GCC governance arrangements in terms of reaching 
communities, particularly the most vulnerable; the positive and accountable 
relationship with the Leader of the Council and the Lead Cabinet Member; and the 
support provided by GCC for GFRS’s improvement journey. He added that they 
were also looking to provide training for this Committee to support scrutiny of the 
service. 

In response to a further question, the CFO explained that in terms of the 
governance proposals set out in the white paper, GFRS was already set up in one 
of the preferred governance model options.

The Chair summed up the discussions, noting the general agreement on the way 
forward. 

It was requested that the draft consultation response be shared with the Committee 
before its submission. 

It was also suggested that members submit any comments they want included in 
the response to the Chair of the Committee by 15 July 2022. 

53. WORK PLAN 2022 

It was noted that the Committee meeting scheduled for the 15 July had been 
cancelled and that the HMICFRS Inspection Report would now be considered at the 
meeting in September. 

54. FUTURE MEETINGS 

The dates of future meetings were noted. 

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 11.30 am

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee actions – 21 June 2022

Topic Action Responsibility Progress

149. Fire Reform White 
Paper

To share the presentation with members. Laura Powick The presentation has been 
published alongside the 
papers for the meeting on the 
GCC website. 

263. Fire Reform White 
Paper

To include a comment in the response to the 
white paper relating to the older pension scheme 
having an impact on the number of senior officers 
retiring early. 

Cllr Norman/ 
Mark Preece

Comments made at the 
meeting were acknowledged 
when producing the draft 
response. 

350. Fire Reform White 
Paper

Final draft of GCC’s response to the consultation 
to be shared with the Committee before 
submission.

Mark Preece/ 
Laura Powick

Completed – circulated by 
email to members on 18 July 
2022. P

age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Fire Scrutiny – 02/09/22 JCV1 

Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee – 2nd September 2022

Report Title: Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & Rescue 
Services (HMICFRS) Update 

Report Author – Jean Cole 

1. Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service (GFRS) was inspected by officers from Her 
Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Services (HMICFRS) during 
September and October 2021.

2. HMICFRS announced their intention to begin to re-inspect all 44 fire and rescue 
services in England in three tranches.  GFRS was inspected as part of the second 
tranche of fifteen fire and rescue services with final reports published on 27th July 2022.

3. The inspection focused on three main questions:

a. How effective is the fire and rescue service at keeping people safe and secure from 
the risk of fire and other risks?

b. How efficient is the fire and rescue service at keeping people safe and secure from 
the risk of fire and other risks?

c. How well does the fire and rescue service look after its people?

4. The inspection involved reviewing the Service’s policies and procedures, the submission 
of a Position Statement and Self-Assessment completed by the Chief Fire Officer, and a 
six week field-work phase, during which the inspectors interviewed employees from 4 
whole-time stations and 6 on-call stations, held several focus groups with members of 
staff across the whole organisation and conducted interviews with middle and senior 
managers.

5. On the 7th January 2022, GFRS  received prior notice that the Inspectorate would issue 
two Causes of Concern:

Cause of Concern 1:
“The Service hasn’t done enough since the last inspection to embed its values 
and associated behaviours, and promote a positive workplace culture.”

Cause of Concern 2:
“The Service hasn’t done enough since the last inspection to improve 
understanding of the importance of equality, diversity and inclusion (EDI) and 
remove barriers to establishing EDI in the service.”

6. In response to this notification, GFRS took a collaborative approach, working with 
Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) corporate leadership team, leaders from across 
the wider organisation, focus groups and representative bodies to develop a detailed 
Improvement Plan to address the issues raised in the two Causes of Concern. This 

Page 21

Agenda Item 4



Fire Scrutiny – 02/09/22 JCV1 

Improvement Plan was sent to the HMICFRS on 24th February 2022 and was signed off 
by the HMICFRS on 11th March 2022.

7. GCC recognised that to deliver transformational change of this scale additional funding 
and resourcing was paramount.  With more than £2m of investment in GFRS over the 
past 2 years, GCC committed a further £2m of funding. This money is being used to 
increase capacity and capability culminating in 28 new posts that will be permanently 
added to the establishment. Clearly, funding alone will not deliver the changes we aspire 
to achieve. However, it will assist in creating the environment for improvement.  

8. On the 25th May 2022, HMICFRS informed GFRS that it would be placed into an enhanced 
monitoring process, which provides additional scrutiny and support through the Fire 
Performance Oversight Group (FPOG).  

9. On the 27th July 2022, the HMICFRS published the final report for GFRS.

10.Using graded judgements against the areas explored in the inspections, the HMICFRS 
identified four overall judgement categories:

 Outstanding – where the service exceeds what is expected for good;
 Good – the expected graded judgement for all fire & rescue services
 Requires Improvement – where there are shortcomings, and
 Inadequate – where there are serious critical failings of policy, practice or 

performance.

11.The overall summary for Gloucestershire FRS states

“The service has invested time and effort to address problems identified during our 
previous inspection but work hasn’t been focussed or co-ordinated, and staff haven’t 
been effectively involved.  Some improvements have been made but overall the 
service has deteriorated since 2019.”

12.The individual grading’s against each of the three areas examined were:

a. Effectiveness – Requires Improvement

“We saw improvements in some areas since our 2019 inspection, but other areas 
have deteriorated.  Overall the service hasn’t made enough progress.  The service 
should make clearer links between, and explain better, how its risk assessments 
informs its risk management plans and objectives.  It still hasn’t developed a 
process to make sure that its home fire safety checks can be easily prioritised to 
those at the highest risk.  It is also still not evaluating all of its prevention activity, 
so it can’t see how well its actions work, and which are the most effective.  Fire 
Safety audits are completed to a consistent standard.  But the feedback that the 
Service gives to building owners needs improving.  It also needs to do more to 
assess the quality of its protection work.”
 

b. Efficiency – Requires Improvement

Page 22



Fire Scrutiny – 02/09/22 JCV1 

“There has been limited progress since the last inspection.  The service’s budget, 
and staffing plans aren’t clearly aligned to its IRMP, nor do they support its 
objectives.  Its performance management arrangements need improvement.  They 
should also show a clear link between the use of resources and achieving the 
services objectives.” 

c. People – Inadequate
“Overall it is disappointing to see that the service has deteriorated in the way it 
looks after its people.  Much more work is needed, quickly and with clear vision 
and leadership.  There has been limited progress in improving the services culture.  
We found worrying pockets of unacceptable behaviour among staff and 
management.  These are having a negative effect on the wider culture of the 
service.  

A significant number of staff feel some leaders don’t model and maintain the 
service’s values.  There is a lack of senior leader visibility.  Staff told us that 
communication between them is seen as one-way and ineffective.  

Progress to address bullying and harassment has been slow.  We found that staff 
have little belief in grievance and bullying, harassment and discrimination 
procedures.  Staff and management have limited confidence to challenge 
inappropriate behaviour.

Efforts to improve equality, diversity and inclusion lack a clear vision, and are not 
effectively co-ordinated.  Equality impact assessments and actions don’t have 
effective governance or oversight.

Some promotion procedures have been updated, but the service needs to do more 
work to make sure that the procedures are fully inclusive, that they support the 
increasing workplace diversity and that they are seen fair by staff.

High workloads are effecting staff wellbeing.  We found that there was no plan to 
address this.

There has been some progress on workforce planning.  But the service needs to 
do more to develop a comprehensive plan that is linked to its IRMP.

Positively, the Service has made some improvements to its approach to staff 
appraisals.   It has appointed an equality, diversity and inclusion (EDI) manager, 
which is an encouraging step towards EDI in the service.  The number of 
temporarily promoted staff has also decreased.”  

13.  In response to the areas identified for improvement, GFRS have taken a collaborative 
approach, working with Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) corporate leadership 
team, leaders from across the wider organisation, focus groups and representative bodies 
to develop a detailed Improvement Plan to address the issues raised which will be 
presented to full Cabinet on 21st September 2022.

14.Progress against the delivery of milestones contained within the Improvement Plan will 
be monitored independently by the recently re-established Community Safety 

Page 23



Fire Scrutiny – 02/09/22 JCV1 

Improvement Board. This Board is chaired by the Deputy Chief Executive, includes the 
Cabinet Lead for Fire Community Safety & Libraries, members from GCC Corporate 
Leadership Team, HMICFRS, National Fire Chiefs Council (NFCC) and the Local 
Government Association. Further governance and oversight will also be delivered by the 
Fire Scrutiny Committee. 

15.To assist us on our journey of improvement we have enlisted the help of an external 
provider who specialise and have a wealth of experience in public sector cultural 
intelligence/change. We have also reached out to the NFCC and will be receiving 
additional support from the Principal Officer Team at West Sussex Fire and Rescue 
Service. 

16.HMICFRS will revisit the Service in autumn 2022, to review progress against the 
Improvement Plan for the two Causes of Concern.

Page 24



Information

Wildfire preparations update for FRSC

A wildfire is defined as any uncontrolled vegetation fire where a decision or action is needed 
about its suppression. A wildfire will meet one or more of the following criteria:

 Involves a geographical area of at least one hectare (10,000 square metres)
 Has a sustained flame length of more than 1.5 metres
 Requires a committed resource of at least four fire and rescue service appliances/resources
 Requires resources to be committed for at least six hours
 Presents a serious threat to life, environment, property and infrastructure

Historically the UK has experienced periodic severe wildfire seasons. These seasons have 
tended to coincide with extended periods of warm and dry weather, and have sometimes 
been accompanied by high winds. The risk of wildfires is also affected by the size, condition 
and dryness of the fuel. Increased rainfall before warm, dry periods can cause rapid 
vegetation growth that can increase the risk of wildfires when the vegetation later dries. 
These are the conditions that provide the ideal environment for the development and spread 
of large and destructive wildfires.

Wildfires can be particularly challenging incidents for fire and rescue services to deal with 
because of their erratic nature, their potential size, scale and intensity and because of the 
rural and rural-urban interface environments in which they tend to occur. Large wildfires can 
be very resource intensive and this can create challenges for fire and rescue services in 
maintaining operational resilience and emergency cover.

Within the County of Gloucestershire, the most significant area of risk of wildfire is the Forest 
of Dean.

The Forest of Dean is a geographical, historical and cultural region in the western part of the 
county of Gloucestershire. The forest is a roughly triangular plateau bounded by the west 
and north, the River Severn to the South, and the City of Gloucester to the East.

The area is characterized by over 110 square kilometers (42.5 sq. miles) of mixed woodland, 
one of the surviving ancient woodlands in England.

Gloucestershire Fire & Rescue Service has plans in place to respond to a wildfire in this area 
should one occur.

The Service has drawn up a tactical plan - Forest of Dean WILDFIRE. This provides 
comprehensive information for responders on – 

 Initial actions and considerations
 Forest HVP (High Volume Pumping) Sectors and pumping plans
 Risks and hazards
 Water sources
 Operating procedures
 Tactical considerations

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



Resources

Prevention and Protection

 Environmental considerations
 Forest of Dean infrastructure information – hospitals and schools, manufacturing 

and commercial

Supporting information is also provided for our incident commanders via Resilience Direct 
and includes the FOD Water Maps and River mapping, in addition to the higher level Local 
resilience Forum plan for Adverse Weather.

Our fire station infrastructure within the Forest of Dean area comprises – 

Lydney Community Fire Station – 2 appliances plus 4x4

Coleford Community Fire Station – 2 appliances plus 4x4

Cinderford Community Fire Station – 2 appliances plus 4x4 forest access/firefighting vehicle

Newent Community Fire Station – 1 appliance plus Unimog all-terrain access vehicle

All are familiar with the tactical plan and have local knowledge of the area. In addition, 
supporting assets from across the Service could be mobilized including the bulk water/foam 
carrier and high volume pumping. 

We have an MOU (Memorandum of Understanding) in place with Gloucestershire 
Constabulary to access their drone (UAV) assets that would provide aerial images to aid 
situational awareness for responders on the ground.

In November 2021, 13 flexi-duty officers attended a two day Wildfire Awareness course run 
by National Resilience/Northumbria Fire & Rescue Service and the intention is to train an 
additional 4 officers to become national tactical advisors on wildfires and so provide a 24/7 
resource.

 Our Community Safety Team have been proactive in getting messaging out around the 
issue of wildfires across all social media platforms in an effort to promote safety to 
homeowners and visitors to the Forest of Dean

The business fire safety team have been engaging with commercial organisations and 
industrial companies within the area to promote good fire safety messaging and behaviors in 
an effort to minimize the risk.

Page 26



Scrutiny Meeting 

Performance Report Quarter 1 2022/23 

Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service (GFRS)

Note: there are two new measures included in the corporate performance data set for the Fire and 
Rescue Service in 2022/23. This provides greater sight across the areas of Prevention, Protection 
and Response. Historic trend data has been included in the performance scorecard in order to 
understand performance over time across the revised data set. Some further development of new 
measures is required at which time targets will be reviewed to ensure they remain appropriate.  

1. One third of measures were better than or within tolerance of target in Quarter 1 (2 of 6 indicators). 
Performance against target for all measures remains the same as in Quarter 4.

2. The rate of Safe and Well visits remains worse than target, although there has been a slight 
improvement compared with previous quarters; up from 0.89 to 0.94 per 1,000 population (601 
visits). The number of Safe and Well visits was anticipated to improve due to firefighter crews 
returning to normal service following the lifting of COVID-19 restrictions. However, impact on 
performance has so far been marginal. The average number of Safe and Well visits carried out 
quarterly by crews over the past 12 months has been 457 (excludes visits by Community Safety 
Advisors); Quarter 1 performance remains in line with this at 455 visits. Safe and Well visits by 
firefighter crews equate to 76% of the visits undertaken in Quarter 1). The Prevention team provide 
data to the Station Managers each month to hold watches to account and to offer any explanation 
for low delivery, however it is currently unclear why there is a delay in recovering to pre-pandemic 
output. A time in motion study will commence in July to provide insights into how individual watches 
manage their workload. In the meantime, watches continue to be expected to carry out 15 Safe and 
Well visits per month. Performance remains below target (2.35) and the comparator group average 
(1.50). 

There were 86 Safe and Well visits which hadn’t been undertaken in more than 28 days following 
referral at the end of June; this is an improvement on last quarter down 89% from 141. Of these, 4 
people had been awaiting a visit for more than 3 months, again, this is a significant reduction from 
previous quarters.

3. The service continues its positive work to reach the most vulnerable people in our community, with 
80% of Safe and Well visits undertaken being to people in vulnerable groups. Performance remains 
better than target (75%) and our comparator group average (74%). The referrals being received are 
reported to be of increasing complexity and vulnerability. Partner agencies also shared their 
concerns about the increase in vulnerability that they are seeing at the recent Gloucestershire 
Safeguarding Adults Board Fire Safety Development sub-group. 

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



The complexity of the referrals being received means that the length of time to complete visits is 
increasing, with time taken to carry out some visits more than doubling from around 20-30 minutes 
to an hour. The time in motion study will help us to understand how much this is a factor impacting 
the number of visits watches are able to complete.

Historic trends indicate a potential correlation between high cost of living and an increase in unsafe 
behaviours relating to heating and cooking. The ongoing cost of living crisis is therefore of concern 
and the Prevention team are working with partners to ensure that anyone visiting homes in the 
County is more alert to potential issues that might result in an increase in fire incidents.

4. There have been 265 accidental dwelling fires over the last 12 months. This is better than the 
annual average over the past 3 years (275). During the first year of the pandemic the number of 
accidental dwelling fires were particularly low (246). This impacted the target that was set, which is 
based on achieving a 14% reduction on the rolling 3-year incident level, this has meant that in 
Quarter 1 performance is worse than target, however performance is better than the same time last 
year (68 incidents compared with 75 in Quarter 1 2021/22).

During Quarter 1, there have been community engagement events increasing firefighter visibility, as 
well as clear messages on social media and in the press/radio which have a strong focus on 
reducing accidental dwelling fires. These focus on cooking, electrical safety and good fire safety 
routines. The Community Safety Team have been attending events in the local community regularly 
throughout the quarter to reach higher risk groups, with the aim of improving fire safety knowledge 
and reducing dwelling fires. A number of smoke alarms have been fitted, as well as heat alarms in 
the kitchens of people with high fire risk factors. CO alarms have also been fitted as part of a pilot 
with Wales and West. Quality Audits of fire safety reports are also being introduced.  This will 
support improved analysis of the seriousness of fires and identify causal trends. 

5. Timeliness of responding to all attended accidental dwelling fires (National definition) was 9 minutes 
17 seconds for Quarter 1, an increase of 3 seconds from last quarter and still within tolerance of 
target. Where it was clear during the initial emergency call that the fire related to a dwelling, the 
average response time improved to 9 minutes 00 seconds.

6. Two measures relating to the inspection of premises have been introduced into the corporate 
performance dataset. Further development will take place as part of our ongoing work to improve 
performance reporting. This will incorporate the new Risk Based Inspection program (RBIP).

In Quarter 1, half of high-risk premises inspected were within timescale. Performance has followed a 
declining trend reducing from 94.7% of inspections within timescale at the same time last year. This 
was an area for improvement highlighted by HMIC during the inspection in Autumn 2021 and the 
decline in performance remains a significant concern. Quarter 2 reporting will aim to include the new 
RBIP which will provide better sight of all high-risk premises and into this area of performance.

7. Inspections of premises are undertaken to gather information to support firefighters in the event that 
they need to attend in response to an incident. Of the premises receiving a (7.2 d) inspection in 
Quarter 1, 93% were within required frequency. This is an increase compared with last quarter (89%); 
however, it should be noted that the number of inspections completed was small. The time and 
motion study will provide insights into why volume of inspections is low. Performance remains worse 
than target.

8. The overall assessment of risk relating to business continuity arrangements is unchanged this 
quarter Moderate (12). Work continues to take place to ensure that all service areas have an up-to-
date business continuity plan in place. In line with best practice, business impact analyses (BIAs) 
need to be conducted before business continuity plans (BCPs) are developed / updated. BIA 
sessions therefore continue to be rolled out to plan owners with a revised target date of BIA 
completion by end June 2022 (and BCPs by end of December 2022). The end of June deadline has 
not been met by plan owners although reasonable progress has been made: two-thirds of BIAs and 
almost half of BCPs have been completed (65% up from 52% and 46% up from 26% respectively). 

Page 28



Non-compliance with business continuity policy and options for escalation will be discussed at the 
next corporate BCM Assurance Board. Work to update the Corporate Recovery Plan, the final 
strand of planned activity, has commenced but will require BIAs to be materially completed.

9. Turnover in the Community Safety Service is following the same increasing trend as seen across 
the organisation and is at a similar level as the Council overall (13.6% in the 12 months to the end of 
June 2022 up from a low of 8.6% in March 2021). Within the Fire and Rescue Service, turnover is 
slightly higher at 14.1%. The Operational Development Team are looking at ways to improve the 
completion of exit interviews and analysing exit interview data to identify any trends. 

The risk relating to Insufficient workforce capacity and/or instability adversely impacting on pace and 
sustainability of improvement and contributing to increase to firefighter safety or capability to deliver 
emergency services to the community remains rated as Moderate 12. Recruitment and selection 
processes have been carried out to backfill substantive posts and although there has been success 
in recruiting to grey book posts we continue to struggle to fill and retain green book posts. Additional 
funding will help to provide the additional resources and training needed, however effects of this will 
only been seen once posts are filled. It is still recognised that there are many work pressures on 
staff, particularly now that the service has been moved into Enhanced Monitoring by HMICFRS at 
the start of Quarter 2.

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Quarter 1 2022/23

Purpose of the report
To provide a strategic overview of the Council's performance for Quarter 1 2022/23.

The following scorecards are enclosed:

Prepared by the Performance and Improvement Team

Page number
Key to Symbols 2
Gloucestershire Fire & Rescue 3
Strategic Risk Register Summary 4

GFRS Scrutiny Committee

1

P
age 31



Risk Impact/Consequence

Likelihood 1
Insignificant

2
Minor

3
Moderate

4
Major

5
Critical

Almost
certain
(5)

5 10 15 20 25

Likely
(4) 4 8 12 16 20

Probable
(3) 3 6 9 12 15

Possible
(2) 2 4 6 8 10

Rare
(1) 1 2 3 4 5

Reporting Basis

Year to Date Performance accumulated over the year

Rolling Year Average performance over a 12 month
period

Annual Performance measured once a year

Latest
Quarter

Performance this quarter

Snapshot Performance at a particular point in time

Forecast Predicted position at the end of the year

Level of
Risk

Score

Low 1  6
Moderate 7 – 12
High 13 – 25

Risk Rating
(calculated by multiplying the Impact with the Likelihood of each risk)

Risk Symbols
Risk Value Increasing
Risk Value Decreasing
No Change

Measure Symbols
Performance Better than Target
Performance Worse than Target
Performance significantly worse than Target
No information
Missing Target
No Value

Bigger is Better A bigger value for this measure is good
Smaller is Better A smaller value for this measure is good
Plan is best Where it is better for performance to be on target rather than above or below

Key to Symbols

2

P
age 32



Transforming Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service

Response

Average Response times to dwelling fires Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 8.39 9.29 7.03 9.14 9.17 9.00

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Jun21 Sep21 Dec21 Mar22
Actual
Jun22

Target
Jun22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Prevention

% of Safe and Well visits undertaken to those in high risk
groups

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 83.4% 83.0% 78.4% 79.0% 80.0% 75.0% 68.0%

Rate of Safe and Well visits undertaken per 1,000 population Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 0.78 0.83 0.89 0.89 0.94 2.35 2.04
Number of Accidental Dwelling Fires Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 75 63 74 60 68 55 103

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Jun21 Sep21 Dec21 Mar22
Actual
Jun22

Target
Jun22

Comments
Comparator
Group

Protection

% of 7.2d premises within required frequency Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 67.9% 87.5% 68.8% 88.9% 93.0% 100.0% n/a
% of higher risk premises inspected within required time
frame

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 94.7% 72.0% 63.4% 50.0% 50.0% 100.0% n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Jun21 Sep21 Dec21 Mar22
Actual
Jun22

Target
Jun22

Comments
Comparator
Group

3

P
age 33

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')


Strategic Risk

Strategic Risk Register

SR10.4

Due to insufficient business continuity management
arrangements failure of the Council or a key partner to
effectively deliver their statutory services, resulting in
community disruption and failure of corporate objectives.

Preece,
Mark

High 16 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate
12

The overall assessment for this quarter is unchanged from the previous quarter
and reflects the following:

Work continues to take place to ensure that all service areas have an uptodate
business continuity plan in place which addresses an agreed range of significant
disruption scenarios. In line with best practice, business impact analyses (BIAs)
need to be conducted before business continuity plans (BCPs) are developed /
updated. BIA sessions therefore continue to be rolled out to plan owners with a
revised target date of BIA completion by end June 2022 (and BCPs by end of
December 2022). The end of June deadline has not been met by plan owners.
Although reasonable progress has been made (see below) this has still not been
at the pace required. Noncompliance with business continuity policy and options
for escalation will be a matter for further discussion at the next meeting of the
corporate BCM Assurance Board. Work to update the Corporate Recovery Plan,
the final strand of planned activity, has commenced but will require BIAs to be
materially completed.

% uptodate BIAs    BCPs
End Q4 20212022    52% 26%
End Q1 20222023 65% 46%

SR10.6

Insufficient workforce capacity and capability adversely
impacting the pace and sustainability of improvement that will
potentially contribute to an increased risk to firefighter safety,
failure to meet our statutory obligations and/ or capability to
deliver emergency services to the community.

Preece,
Mark

High 20 Moderate 8 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate
12

Recruitment and selection processes have been carried out to backfill substantive
posts, although there is success in recruiting to grey book posts there continues
to be a struggle to fill and retain green book posts. Additional funding will help to
provide the finance needed for additional resource and training, however effects
of this will only been seen once posts are filled. It is still recognised that there
are many work pressures on staff and this Risk has been identified by the recent
HMICFRS Inspection Report, therefore work to address the risk of having
insufficient capacity and capability within the workforce continues.

Strategic Risk 10: Emergency Response & Business Continuity Threats

Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Jun21 Sep21 Dec21 Mar22
Actual
Jun22

DoT Jun
22

Mitigating Actions

4

P
age 34

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col11')


Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee - Work Plan 2022

2 September 2022 11 November 2022  13 January 2023       

Discussion items 

 HMICFRS inspection feedback 
 Resilience to wildfires in Gloucestershire 

Information items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

Discussion items 

 Update on progress with GFRS and 
Constabulary/PCC collaboration (written 
report to focus on the three themes 
identified: the Shared Estate, Road 
Safety, and Community Safety).

 The future of the Tri-Service Centre (tbc)
 Emergency Services Network Programme

Information items 

 Feedback on the success/ value of the 
Young Person Support Officer role (after 6 
months in post). 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

Discussion items 

 Review of Severn Park Joint Training 
Centre

 Shared use of Newent and Dursley Fire 
Stions – Progress Update *

 GFRS Net Zero Carbon Progress Update 
(to include total savings on carbon 
emissions for all vehicle types, as well as 
plans for reducing carbon foot print in 
energy use, equipment etc). *

Information items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

* Potential information items, rather than for 
discussion

10 March 2023 26 May 2023 14 July 2023

Discussion items 

Information items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

Discussion items 

Information items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

Discussion items 

Information items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 7



Future Items 

1 Fire Cover Review/ High Risk Buildings Date to be confirmed 5

2  Motion 901- Road Safety in 
Gloucestershire – to consider the 
motion and receive a briefing on recent 
accidents and their causations. 

Date to be confirmed
Workshops, visits and member development sessions

3 1 Visit to Severn Park Joint Training Centre To be arranged

4 2 Visit to the vehicle workshops at 
Waterwells

To be arranged

P
age 36


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes
	27 May 2022 FRSC Actions
	Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee - Comparator Group
	FRSC Minutes - 21 June 2022
	Minutes

	21 June 2022 FRSC Actions

	4 HMICFRS Inspection Feedback
	5 Resilience to wildfires in Gloucestershire
	6 GFRS Performance Data and Updates
	GFRS Scrutiny Q1 10.8.22

	7 Work Plan 2022/23

